GU(A

T

You

Tube

10000 Emmett F Lowry,
Suite 1220

Texas City, TX 77591
409.763.2373

Toll Free- 1-800-643-0967
FAX 409.978-2401

www.GulfCoastCenter.org

NOTICE OF MEETING

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

The Gulf Coast Center Board of Trustees meeting for the month of
January will be held on Wednesday, January 29, 2020 at 6:15 p.m. at the
Brazoria County Community Service Center, 101 Tigner, Angleton,
Texas.

Thank you,
Cathy Claunch-Scott

Secretary to the Board of Trustees

cc: January Board of Trustees File

Better community healthcare promoting healthy living.



THE GULF COAST CENTER

Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
Brazoria County Community Service Center
101 Tigner, Angleton, TX

Wednesday, January 29, 2020

6:15 pm

"Better community healthcare promoting healthy living."

1. Call TO Order o mmsnansmerooms o s o e s s e S e e Jamie Travis, Board Chair
2. Citizens’ Comments

3. Program Report: Audit Presentation...................oooi . Eide Bailly, LLP

4. Board Member Reports

a. Texas Council of Community Centers (Pg. 1-2) ........ooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn. Jamie Travis, Board Chair
b. Texas Council Risk Management Fund................ Mary Lou Flynn-Dupart, TCRMF Board Chair
5. CEO REPOIt ...t Melissa Tucker, CEO
a. CCBHC Update
6 Operations RePOTtiu st e i e T S e Melissa Tucker, CEO

a. 1% Quarter Board Report

7. Budget, Finance and Admin Reports ...............cccciiiiii i, Rick Elizondo, CFO
a. Financial & Operational Monthly Report & YTD Summary (Pg. 3-5)
b. Sale of Property Update
c. Corporate Compliance Annual Training and 2019 Report Approval (Pg. 6-10)

8. Consent Agenda................oiiiiiiii e Linda Bell, JD
Consideration and Approval of Recommendations and Acceptance of Consent Agenda
Items. (Consent agenda items may be pulled from this consideration for individual action or
presentation.)

a. Review and approval of December 11, 2019 board meeting minutes. (Pg. 11-15)
b. Review and approval of November & December 2019 check register.

O, ACHION HOMIS. . o Linda Bell, JD
a. Consider the approval of the FY2020 Budget Amendment #1. (Pg. 16-17)

b. Consider the acceptance of the FY2019 Financial and Compliance Audit.

c. Consider the approval of Amendment #2 the HHSC Mental Health First Aid (MHFA) contract
#HHS000181000001. This amendment increases training funds by $15,000 per year through
2023 for a total increase of $60,000.

Page 1 of 3

If you need additional assistance to effectively participate in or observe this meeting please contact (409) 763-
2373 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting so that reasonable accommodations can be made to assist you.




. Consider the approval of Amendment #8 to the HHSC Adult Specialized Female (TRF) contract
#2016-048313-006. This amendment increases funding by $1,528,463.00.

. Consider ratification of the FY20 renewal agreement with J Allen and Associates of Texas,
LLC for comprehensive psychiatric/telepsychiatric and mental health services and pharmacy
services in the Brazoria County Jail. Reimbursement: $1000/mo plus medication expense.
Term: December 1, 2019 — November 30, 2020. {(no change from FY19)

Consider ratification of the FY20 professional service renewal agreement with Christopher L.
Baker for social security representation and counseling services for individuals designated by
GCC and specialized training for staff regarding social security benefits representation and
counseling. Reimbursement: $500 for full social security representations; $500 for full training;
$100/mo for 8 hours of consultation; $250 for small group refresher; and $100 for 1:1 refresher.
(no change from FY19)

. Consider approval of the new mileage reimbursement rate of 57.5 cents/mile decrease from .58
cents/mile. This decrease is in keeping with the rate decrease that has been implemented by
the State of Texas; and is consistent with the IRS allowable mileage rate for the use of personal

vehicles — both decreased on January 1, 2020.

h. Consider the approval of Carol Gaylord to be appointed as the Center's representative on the
ETBHN Regional Planning and Network Advisory Committee.

i. Consider approval of the recommended vendor, Integrated Technology Solutions for Audio
Visual Equipment for the Administration Board Room. Description: Requesting funding to
upgrade the Admin board room which will allow us to modernize how we conduct meetings, host
video conferences and presentations. These innovations will include a large theater screen, HD
laser projector, and an audic system. GCC received five (5) budgetary quote proposals and
Integrated Technology Solutions provided the best AV equipment quality for the price when
compared to other vendors. The quotes ranged from $8,000-39,000K. Integrated Technology
Solutions came in at $9,985.00.

10. Pending or Revised Action ltems

................................................ Linda Bell, JD

Pending or revised items are those items which were on a prior board agenda but not completely resolved or
there has been a revision since approval. The items may be listed for update purposes or final action by the

Board.
T4, Calendar... ..o e e Jamie Travis, Board Chair
Date Event Time Location

February 26, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Texas City

March 25, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Angleton

April 22, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Texas City

May 27, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Angleton

June 24-26, 2020 Annual Conference Grand Hyatt — San Antonio
July 22, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Texas City

August 26, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Angleton

12. Executive Session

Page 2 of 3

If you need additional assistance to effectively participate in or observe this meeting please contact (409} 763-
2373 at least 24 hours prior fo the meeting so that reasonable accommodations can be made fo assist you.




As authorized by Chapter §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Trustees reserves the right
fo adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to seek legal advice from its
Attorney about any matters listed on the agenda.

EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO SECTONS 551.071 AND 551.072 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT
CODE:; CONSULTATIN WITH COUNSEL AND DELIBERATION REGARDING THE PURCHASE,
EXCHANGE, OR VALUE OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4650 DIXIE FARM RD, PEARLAND, TX

13. Reconvene to Open Session
14. Action Regarding Executive Session
15. Adjourn

Page 3of 3

If you need additional assistance to effectively participate in or observe this meeting please contact (408) 763-
2373 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting so that reasonable accommodations can be made fo assist you.




CCBHC Certification and DSRIP Traunsition Plan

Community Centers continue progress toward system-wide Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic {CCBHC)
certification and a directed payment model. All Centers have initially identified a 3-month time period before August
2021 when they anticipate readiness to begin the HHSC certification process.

The Texas Council will host three upcoming CCBHC-related meetings:

s Addressing Social Drivers of Health: From Data te Operations (January 22, 2020)
s Integrated Care: Achieving Physical Health Goals (February 20, 2020}

e Integrated Care: Access to Addiction Services (March 25, 2020)

In December 2019, Texas Council met with MHSC to discuss underlying financial information and cost projections
associated with implementation of CCBHC directed payments and access to STAR+PLUS benefits for the SMI population.
Texas Council provided all FY19 Center-specific cost reports and aggregated data. We anticipate follow-up questions
from HHSC that wilf require providing HHSC additional information as they begin their analysis. Texas Council will
continue to request and refine information necessary to best infarm HHSC.

Texas Child Mental Health Care Consortium

The newly-established Texas Child Mental Health Care Consortium, as directed by S.B. 11 (86" Legislature), met for the
first time in August 2019 and since has established its basic structure and implementation and budget plans. The
Consortium’s focus is school safety and mental health prometion in public schools. The Community Center system is
represented on the Consortium by Danette Castle.

A draft implementation plan was submitted to the Legislative Budget Board in November 2019 and is pending approval.

Highlights from the plan include:

s Child Psychiatry Access Network {CPAN) s intended to offer a network of child psychiatry access centers for
purpose of providing consultation services and training opportunities for pediatricians and primary care providers
treating children and youth with behavioral health needs. CPAN programs at twelve {12) Health-Related Institutions
were recommended for funding ($26.8 million for two years).

s Texas Child Health Access Through Telemedicine (TCHATT) is intended to be a network of telemedicine or
telehealth programs staffed by academic health centers that provide in-school behavioral health care to at-risk
children and adolescents or support and consultation to school staff. The role of TCHATT is the initial intervention,
assessment, and referral, if necessary. TCHATT funds may not be used for ongoing management of the student’s
mental health needs. TCHATT programs at twelve (12) Health-Related Institutions were recommended for funding
{$37.1 million for two years).

+ Community Psychiatry Workforce Expansion is intended to provide one full-time psychiatrist to serve as academic
medical director at a community mental health facility and two resident rotation positions. Efforts are underway to
match participating Health Related Institutions {HRIs) with Local Mental Health Authorities and other Community
Mental Health providers. Thirty-one (31} LMHAs indicated interest in participating. Eleven {11) HRIs, partnered with
fourteen (14) Community Mental Health Centers, were recommended for funding {$8 million for two years).

+ Research funding is Intended to develop statewide research networks within the HRIs composed of researchers
interested and skilled in the selected critical research topics and able to support research targeted at high priority
areas affecting children and adolescents. Research was recommended for funding ($10 million for two years}.

TEXAS COUNCIL OF COMMUNITY CENTERS, CONTACT: ELAWLER@TXCOUNCIL.COM

An electronic version of this document is available on the Texas Council Intranet.



HOW Project: Preparing for and Responding to Mass Casualty Incidents

In the first quarter of the fiscal year, Texas Council’s Health Opportunities Workgroup (HOW) focused on developing
guidance for CEOs and other Community Center staff in response to mass casualty events. Community Centers are catled
upon not only to respond to the urgent mental health needs of survivors, witnesses, and first responders, butto actasa
cornerstone for immediate and long-term community needs encampassing response and recovery.

For these reasons, the HOW, with input from involved Centers and HHSC Disaster Behavioral Health staff, developed a
guide: Preparing for Mass Casualty Events: What Every CEQ Should Do. A draft version was shared at the November
2019 Executive Directors Consortium. The guide is still being refined and will be distributed widely upon completion.
Additionally, Texas Council plans to host a summit focused on Community Center preparedness and response to mass
casualty incidents.

First Episode Psychosis (Coordinated Specialty Care)

Currently 23 LMHAs operate Coordinated Specialty Care {CSC) programs, focused on evidence-based practices designed
to meet the needs of individuals with early onset psychotic disorders. These services are primarily funded through a
federal block grant.

CSC programs were highlighted during the Senate Select Committee on Mass Violence Prevention and Community
Safety hearing on December 4, 2019. The Select Committee will make recommendations related to community
collaboration to detect, prevent, and respond to mass violence, Testimony described the value of CSC programs and
noted an Exceptional Item requested by HHSC in the previous Session to allow for expansion of CSC programs statewide.

This approach is the most effective treatment for early psychosis. Ensuring access to services across the state is an
important step in addressing the needs of the estimated 3,000 Texans who experience an initial episode of psychosis in a
given year.

Qutpatient Mental Health Services for People with IDD
HHSC was appropriated $3 million for the 2020-21 biennium to provide outpatient mental health services for people
with IDD. The agency is directed to expend $1.5 million in each of the twao years.

HHSC will use the FY2020 funds to support a learning community to advise HHSC on best practice models of services and
associated outcome measures that demonstrate success providing outpatient mental health services for individuals with
(DD. The best practice models and accompanying strategies to expand access to outpatient mental health services for
persons with 10D developed by the learning community will inform use of funds in FY2021.

Annual Conference: San Antonio, June 24-26, 2020 / Award Nominations Open

The submission deadline for the 2020 Frank M. Adams Qutstanding Volunteer Service Awards is fast approaching!
Nominations are open for the following categories: individuals, community groups, and media. The award recognizes a
level of volunteerism that is exceptional, far-reaching in scope, and demonstrates a long-term commitment on behalf of
Community Centers, Nominations must be received at the Texas Council office no later than, 5:00 p.m., Friday, January
24, 2020. More information is available in the News section of the Texas Council Intranet site. If you have questions,

contact Tara Brown at tbrown@txcouncil.com.

TEXAS COUNCIL OF COMMUNITY CENTERS, CONTACT: ELAWLER@TXCOUNCIL.COM

3

An electronic version of this document is available on the Texas Council Intranet.



Tjoradey

SO OETHST R GIYTErT  §

0S°€6%°99 & L0690l §

GREPI'DS  §

-{dXT-ATA) AINVIIVA

OLETE

a'szs'y g

HFErG'Y 8 GFR99S §

IUsgl’'s §

ASNILIXH AINVIVE ANOT TTV.LOLINS

0L°LSESE noyzL'c
00'§9¢°¢ [ILIRVIY
oGk 00 00€

LI % SN OOELY'T
GOO00° 1 HeaNds
0soot COons'T

0L°€18°C

00 0LE"]
uorong

MBI I0 . 4ofopy - sioafog [ndey
SADUNAIS SIIV - S120f0.4f Jnid )y
SI02M04F SN S (23605 - JHIRATH) Y 155}
AHING ) DLIGIDIY - NSUINL] JI3100,)
HSUDLL] 12IHH0,)
OIS APHannas ) - S35 (Iclf
HONEOI2Y [IDIS 221127 J11
saararag (101 - Sarpuadg apgeof]
WPV HI - Sutpuadg sjgixog
Buiprads apqixof.y

SCESSOLT  § L GEOSE'ST S| 0S°0L0'EL S| LOLEL'R1  § | 6S6(ESS S [ 0 § 3 (dVaaay) ONILVITE0 TVLOISNS
%9E  GUGTCCOTTI § B G0'SSCEPET S SONINIOSES SCCESClT S DRONUTEOTS B SOrTaert S 8| STANTAMH TVIOL
ECLI0TESTS COROP'CHET  LTRLSOPCT OLSTINSOTT £9TLTR'SST FLE 6T S
%9t FFGD'SEE LTBLLTT [9°LIH96 RS BH6TS 8E'SHG'TS 10g' 6201 SISLLTY pUE (P1EYD 39 IRV FEN - 490§ [RIapay
%t  tEBLSTHL 29ERE 61 LY PSR 81 FO'LEEY8I $6'896°081 9¢1°661°T (1 - UBl ASUIURELEYY/SNUIAMY [LIDUAD)
%I U9'REFLET CHREL9Y CU9TT09 $9'9ZZ 09 $99TT0Y LTHSTE Y} - SANAIIG SISL) - IRURAY (WAL
iAIE - - . - - - (PIEUD 3 APV INDN - ARGRANY [RIdUADY
LT OL$RL09E] 61°L81OPE LILB1DFE LI'LRT'OrE LULS108€ LT ERO'Y [PHdse]] [BuoBag) - AnudATY [RIDUID),
%Lt SLLILES'T F6OYE'FLY LT'8E8°659 YTOTH B6S $T9TSFOS FRIEER'S %601 - (S19A 39 PIND 3 1[OPYV) HIIN - S0U3a0y) (eI2uar)
SAVU ¥ STISQ 0Enloy Fouriaaq)isg;
16 145°T80'0 BTOGETOLT  OR'CO0'TLOT  OGSECLFTL  €6SOE0911 1LTT96'C1
%LT  LOLIG00E 08 L6TTL TSHTESS TSI SRELIDL S6ELOLT DIVIN/SPURL] {RIPAIEIS JOGIQ)
Y%6f  ST69LGEL] 6L'£89°968 8T 1866+ 1TF90'E68 00°Or8°68E PNy ERIAPAT SSUNIDALEA, ST PITIPALY
%8¢ ITIOCLETT 92916 8L F1788L'906 TS ESHHEL 69 OrS 1T TIPS 15| 1P| - woneodsu |
%67 LL'S9TOIS TIor8'0Ic LU'$L6'TR1 LI'96E'SET e 1507181 PEGO0YT PIE3IPAN ~ XX ALL,
%8  E0PI9'0%6 SEE09' o [SI8L'ELT LI'6TS 681 DO'COL'PST 11F'$8t'c SIIBID) / SANALIG 0] 33, - K194093Y]
Yfl  SEELSFIF 9L PSLCL $TOSI°SL 1£7699°CZ1 00°000'€s1 £96'T8Z°1 TUISN0}] JUBURLLEY/[BECLISURL], - CH1F
QAUICIUE RIN/pPAesg
SO'65L°6S8 88°810'FFT 88°€ET56) §6'090 10T PTORFLIE 078928
%rT  L0'PISGFC FTE0%L 09 EL0'6S S9°RLOPS 1£419°T9 1980 AWODU] R0 $OOAUE][ROSIN
%bt  OL'OFILTT LUBIREL SCH09'SE £L0€L's8 IT186°8S £69°61¢ IUAUASINUIDY SIUBINSU] S0 1T
%If  PTIS08'TSE 60'8K1°S6 06°L8S'Lo PEGFTLG TR SISDETE spury] AJUn0)
Spuny [rao |
S NI VI AA0 - SANNAART,
%$t  FOOLL'STOC) $ BF O6FES'EIETS SHCLIPIFES RUeRS0LTS ICO0STLLCCS B SOTFR0FE S B ASNIINH TVEOL
%€ TTISTOLLET 66'SCC 6L 65T CHS £TLLO'G09 L HO'BLS PP 06T 8 S13pIACL] |RUOISSAIOIJ AT TSHO))
%SE 9RTHEGTE IFELG'ST 6TTSTLE 0L'689°FE SELSHIS TELITS 51800 boddng quonyy
YbE  CO'91ITSL 6F 91802 S6'TLETOT £0°6Z5'TCT 96" L6S 9E GEORICE sasuadaxzy Buressdgy 1y
%LE  TL'9ST9YY 6L IS0'LEL FETOS 011 38°L0T'CTI 1SFERSI I 6EF69T'] SAUTNM/OURUIULITIIUY - SABNIIT]
%CPT $9°$T0°0HD OIS SY89T I0F LOFSS1'SE PRYYSCL 108 sant e Auanidiabypmipan - fepng eade))
%Zf  LOTISIOl 69 +I9°CT 9ELLE'GT 96°608°9C 00rgusse Q0§°81€ A0IeI0nET/S[Ea ALY
%61 0S'08I'ES 60'F8E'9T 9L'8re" 1T D06ES'EE S9ROLOT ToLTTr saitddng ajquamsuo)
%08 SEPS9's3 Fo'8L8 01 9T H9TLE 9% ELLOT 6S7E90°LL 196'6L1 [oARL],
%St FLLGS'STET 6F06LG9F £CHGE"LSE 66'5Z8°gbE L9863 1F TI6'T8LS s1fausg) 2fups
%IlE L LLFGTL Y OEPLLPPIL  CUGLOSLTT  9LSOLFLIL 98 196°1FIT ) £o1'8c0'st
YIS A2 AL KRty anpayag 3eEpng feuoned oy peoy
ey grLA GI-09 GI-A0N 6110 6[-dag 193pngy penuuy 0707 AT, |PISLY
QT0TAd GThTAA ATNTAA OTATAL HCOCAE nEpT A AIUDTY ISHO7) JIND) AR,




The Gulf Coast Center
F¥2020 Monthlv Board Financial Review Unatidized as of 12/31/2079

"' Fiscal Year 2020 Unudited Centerwide General Fund Balance Status -

Total General Fund Balanee as of 08/31/19 (Unaudiet)..o..vcvreereeeesreeerseeseeeesssssissosseee oo oo e $ (4,774,598)
FY2019 Year-to-Date Reported Expense and Revenue Totals (Unaudited)

Expenditures Operational 12,028,776
Non-Operational -
Fund Balance 22323 12,051,099
Revenues Operarional 12,205,329
Non-Operational - 12,205,329 § 154,231

——

Total General Fund Balance Year-to-Date {Unaudited)..

Board Committed Use General Funds (Fiscal Year Committed)

. 8 (4,928,828)

Capital Projects - Facility (FY2008-FY2011) (206,000}
Capital Projects - Facility (FY2013) (100,060)
Capital Projects - Facility (FY2014) (100,000)
Capital Projects - Facility (FY2015) (150,000 (550,000.00)
£2008-£y2015 Expenditure 408,065.86
f¥2016 Expenditure 31,088.00

fy2017 Expenditure -
fy20(8 Expenditure -

(116,846)
Capital Projects - I'T (FY2003-FY2014) (600,000}
Captial Projects - IT (FY2015) (150,000
Captial Projects - [T (FY2017) {140,000) (890,000.00)
£2003-62015 Expenditure 677,587.43
fy2016 Expenditure -
¥2017 Expenditure 66,432,735
ty2018 Expenditure
(145,980}
DD Cowununity Service Support (FY2011-2014) (300,000)
IBD Community Service Support (FY2016) (100,000)
DD Community Service Support {FY2018) (100,600} {500,000.00)
fy2003-y2017 Expenditure 347,565.93
2018 Expenditure 62,293.00
f¥2019 Expenditure 61,667.90
42020 Expenditure 15,557.70
{12,910)
Connect Transit (FY2015)  LJ Urban (320,000) (320,000.60)
v2016-£y2017 Expenditure
fy2018 Expenditure . {320,000
Connect Transit (FY2013)  General Services (422,869) (422.869.00)
f20135-fv2016 Expenditure 300,000.00
ty2017 Expenditure -
2018 Expenditure -
(122,869)
Major Facility Repairs (FY2014) {186,940) (£86,940.00)
fy2014-82015 Expenditure 186,940.00

tv2016 Expenditure -
fy2017 Expenditure -
2018 Expenditure -

Flexible Spending Supports (FY2004-2013) (500,000)
Flexible Spending Supports (FY2018) {100,000) (600,000.00)
{¥2003-fy2017 Expenditure 485,466.77
f¥2018 Expenditure £5,893.58
#2019 Expenditure 16,303.09
2020 Expenditure 6,765.00

— e —

(75,572) (788.177)

‘Unestricted Uss General Fund Bafange (Unudited) ™~~~ - 0 T E1anesn)



1ty aegy Adnrep ESTTITERETY) ERTINTETYIN]

EYEDNTIEN A3q0120) ‘_.EE&._.W

- - - - - - - - Lilrad] 9FERET 6iT'Ly G06'SR
SOOFI'tr  (TEF690'E) (LLE'SE0'T) (TS5 090°F)
(RT9'BE6'P) (RTR'GTAF)  {BTR'BTGY) (979'826'1) BTWREC'Y)  ($78°820'F)  (STRRTG'P)  (RCRRI6'P)  (NZ®'Rze't) | (FOSHO6'TY GIRLER') (PL T8

FEETT F69'99

OLR'BER'T 009160

019'7€9°C

o90seer)  OLIToIr)

stop aad oy Hap

AINIUG PUILE DRIOLISARIT IO L

..n.«.u:_t...th pPHILy Jetatiany ey

ARG LT

OF INDRIIINYISULIINL JANT

NARUMAY (MO
SSARUBNFY PIUDIVG Jerf
XIUARY IIoRvaadg-110pN

- - - - SRETHE'E TIFLOS'E £ISTILT 019'7€9'¢ iNauzaIY ppropviad(y
- - - - - - - - SS5'FI8'T 906'FT0'E £S1°60L'T 9IF'THET ssasuadyiy preg
- - - - - - - - 9ISt £r6'e 899's 981's “NASURLXT] DOTILG Pty
Uns'cor) (ZI1Z'01%) ..a..‘..._..:unh_.lbw .__u:&uc.?oﬁet_:é?_
- - - - - - - - SES'EIE'E SLI'tEr'E SRL'CNLT NRE'LLST 8asudxyy pouopnisdo
Jsadny Ay Jung Lvpy pady qaangl Laenagas Laenunp SN JAIIA0N] JMI010 dMwadag

@anpuvun) selo |, VLY puv asuadxy payLodsy AIYILOI 6107 A

(R6S'FLLY) § B R (S T T T

1) 61/LE/0 J0 51 d3upey pung (12030 [vio ],

SIJUIS asufEg PUILT JEI5U9D) SPIMIDIID]) FHIPALL] 0T 1694 16351

-

610Z/TE/CT Jo sv pappnnuy

10 SULTU plinyg ATIPUOIA 070201

D)) 1580 JInD) oNLL



Gulf Coast Center

Corporate Compliance
Annual Report

Fiscal Year 2019

Submitted by:

Cindy Kegg, Corporate Compliance Officer
Gulf Coast Center

January 2020




Gulf Coast Center
Corporate Compliance Annual Report
Fiscal Year 2019

Gulf Coast Center’s Corporate Compliance Program has been in place since FY 2002 and
continues to serve as the framework for the compliance efforts within the organization. The
Compliance Plan and Business Code of Conduct convey the Center’s clear commitment to
honest and responsible conduct, and reinforce the expectation of lawful and ethical behavior
throughout the organization. This report reflects key components of the Center’'s compliance
program with corresponding activities of FY 2019, as well as comparison figures from FY 2002
through FY 2019 where indicated. The report also includes a summary of accomplishments
from the Federal fiscal year {October 2018 — September 2019} as reported by the Office of
Inspector General {O1G) and the Department of Justice (DOJ).

Corporate Compliance Training

Communicating the procedures, laws and expectations associated with compliance is key to the
success of a compliance program. To that end, educating staff through annual compliance
training continued to be a priority during FY 19 with participation required at all levels of the
organization. New hires receive compliance training during New Employee Orientation (NEQ)
which is provided twice monthly. The frequency of compliance training not only provides new
employees with timely education and early indoctrination into the Center’s culture of
compliance, but also offers multiple training opportunities for existing staff to obtain required
annual compliance training. Twenty-two (22) compliance trainings were offered in NEQ during
FY 2019 with two (2) cancellations due to no new hires. An additional video presentation was
provided to Connect Transportation staff on Saturday, February 9, 2019. A total of three
hundred and sixty-one (361) participants attended compliance training during FY 2019,
Confirmation of training completion is maintained by both Human Resources and the
Compliance Officer. The Compliance Exemption Test which is available to eligible staff most
years was pulled during FY 2019 and all staff were required to attend a live training.

Compliance Reports / Investigations

The Center's Compliance Officer received seventeen (17) reports during FY 2019. Sixteen (16)
of the seventeen (17) concerns were related to confidentiality/HIPAA violations and impacted
twenty-five (25) individuals. These violations were the result of human error and were primarily
the consequence of either unencrypted emails or information being released to the incorrect
person or entity. The majority of incidents impacted only one (1) individual with a single
instance of an unencrypted email impacting ten (10} individuals. The final compliance concern
reported during FY 2019 was an allegation of fraud. The investigation resulted in an
unconfirmed finding with a further determination that the allegations were made in bad faith
and with malicious intent; the reporter was subsequently recommended for termination.

2 7



The below table denotes the number and type of compliance concerns reported to the
Compliance Officer since the initiation of the compliance program in FY 2002.

{Numbers in parenthesis represent incidents resulting in a refund. For example: 2 {1) reads 2 investigations, 1 of
which resulted in a refund. Similarly, the Medicaid Refund column denotes in parenthesis the number of incidents
responsible for the refund for that fiscal year).

200205 0 21(1) 2 (1) 2 $9,821.31 {2)
2003 1 3(1) 3({1) 1 $3,654.20 {2)
2120045 11 2{1) 0 3 (1) 1{1) 0 $15,437.36 (3)
520057 14 2 0 1(1) 0 517,699.55 (1)
20067 g 3 (1) 0 1{1} 0 $12,471.46 (2}
220075 11 3(2) 0 0 $14,994.83 {2}
2008 5 0 0 2 0 (0)
2009 5 2 0 3(3) 0 $27,672.28 (3)
20108 4 0 0 3(3) 1(1) ] $22,168.46 (4)
2011 7 0 0 1 (0)
20125 22 2({1) 0 1 1 $46.76 (1)
120135 18 1 [ 1(1) 2 $275.22{1)
20147 22 Q 0 0 0 0 (0)
52015 18 2 ] 0 0 0 {0)
1201651 111 1 0 0 0 0 $2,585,28 (1)
20170 25 0 i} 0 0 [ {0)
42018 18 0 0 0 0 0 (0)
420190 16 0 0 1(0) 0 0 (0)
Sgtaliiiainiearei s E oy Ll g s g SN o 6126,826:71422)

Annual Compliance Survey

The annuzl Corporate Compliance Survey was distributed to all staff in September 2019, The
survey serves as a follow-up to the FY 2019 compliance training and evaluates staff competency
on basic compliance information. The survey further evaluates staffs’ perception of the
compliance plan through questions related to the successful resolution of reported concerns, if
applicable, as well as management support. In addition, the survey provides another method
for submitting compliance issues or concerns that were not previously reported. Overall,
survey responses indicated that staff were both knowledgeable and satisfied with the manner
in which reported issues were addressed during FY 2019. Follow-up was attempted with two (2)
staff to further explore comments made on the survey. Both an email and a letter were sent
but neither staff responded; one of the staff subsequently resigned from the Center.

Corporate Compliance Committee

The Corporate Compliance Committee meets regularly and continues to advise and assist the
Compliance Officer with monitoring the compliance program and ensuring that the Center’s
compliance efforts are both effective and responsive to the needs of the organization. The
committee convened quarterly during FY 2019 with meetings on September 18, 2018;
December 18, 2018; March 19, 2019; and June 19, 2019.

Although committee membership remained constant during FY 2019, two new participants
were recommended by the committee and approved by CEOQO Melissa Tucker in September
2018. Chief Information Officer Reginald Brumfield replaced retired staff, Pam Melgaras. Sandy

| 3



Patterson was appointed as the permanent Adult Mental Health representative — a seat that
had rotated through Mental Health Program Managers since 3" quarter, FY 2017. The Center
position of Recovery Director was not filled during FY 2019; instead, a single Director of
Behavioral Health Services position was created in each county for oversight of both Recovery
and Adult Mental Health Service. On March 1, 2019, Sandy became the Director serving
Galveston County. In addition, Amy McMahon became the Director serving Brazoria County in
addition to her role of Director of Youth Behavioral Services.

Membership during FY 2019 included the following individuals and is reflective of the major
service areas:

Amy McMahon, Director of Behavioral Health Services, Brazoria County / Youth Behavioral
Health

Casey Duty, Manager of Utilization Services

Cindy Kegg, Corporate Compliance Officer/Rights Protection Officer
Donna Gordon, Director of Reimbursement Services

Jeanine McNulty, Chief Human Resources Officer

Jerry Freshour, Director of Crisis & Community Outreach

Melissa Hollman, Contract Manager/QM Supervisor

Reggie Brumfield, Chief Information Officer

Sandy Patterson, Director of Behavioral Health Services, Galveston County
Timothy Ornelas, IDD Crisis Intervention Specialist

In addition to addressing and responding to any specific concerns identified during the
quarterly meetings, the committee routinely reviews the following:

o Compliance reports and incidents

¢ Compliance investigations

¢ Business Code of Conduct Violations

e QOverpayments / refunds / fee collection

e Audit findings

¢ Quality Management activities

e Drug and zlcohol testing {Connect Transit and other Center programs)

* Licensure / website verifications / exclusion lists / background check issues
¢ HITECH Breach Notification issues

¢ The Compliance Plan, Compliance Procedures and Business Code of Conduct
® Risk and Compliance Annual Assessment

e MIS Security Risks/Education

Fiscal Audit

The Center’s Annual Financial and Compliance Audit for the year ending August 31, 2019 was
completed by Eide Bailley in January 2020. Although the final report had not been received by
the date this Annual Compliance Report was submitted, per Chief Financial Officer Rick
Elizondo, there were no Federal or State compliance findings. The audit will be presented to
the Center’s Board of Trustees for review and approval at the January 29, 2020 Board Meeting.

| 9



Compliance — A Federal Perspective

On December 2, 2019 the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Inspector
General posted the 0IG’s Semi-Annual Report to Congresst covering April 1, 2019~ September
30, 2019. The report highlighted the achievements of the 2019 Federal fiscal year (October 1,
2018 through September 30, 2019) and included the below accomplishments:

* expected investigative recoveries of $5.9 billion in misspent Medicare, Medicaid, and
other health and human service program dollars returned to the government;

» criminal actions against 809 individuals or organizations engaging in crimes against HHS
programs and the beneficiaries they serve;

e civil actions against 695 individuals or entities including false claims and unjust-
enrichment lawsuits filed in Federal district court, civil monetary penalty settlements,
and administrative recoveries related to provider self-disclosure matters;

e exclusion of 2,640 individuals and entities from participation in Medicare, Medicaid, and
other Federal health care programs.

On January 9, 2020 a press release from the Office of Public Affairs reported that the
Department of Justice recovered over $3 billion in False Claims Act cases in fiscal year ending
Sept. 30, 2019. According to the release, recoveries since 1986 when Congress substantially
strengthened the civil False Claims Act now total $62 billion. Accomplishments highlighted in
the DOJ report include:

o Of the more that $3 billion in settlements and judgments recovered by the Department
of Justice this past fiscal year, $2.6 relates to matters that involved the health care
industry including drug and medical device manufacturers, managed care providers,
hospitals, pharmacies, hospice organizations, |laboratories, and physicians. This is the
tenth consecutive year that the department’s civil health care fraud settlements and
judgments have exceeded 52 billion.

¢ Ofthe $3 billion in settlements and judgments reported by the government in fiscal year
2019, over $2.1 billion arose from lawsuits filed under the gui tam? provisions of the
Faise Claims Act. The number of such lawsuits has grown significantly since 1986 with
633 qui tam suits filed this past year — an average of more than 12 new cases every
week.

Conclusion

The Center continues to demonstrate a good faith effort to promote honest and responsible
behavior through the expectations set forth in the Compliance Plan and Business Code of
Conduct. Educating staff and conveying clear expectations of conduct serves to further
reinforce organizational integrity and reduce the risk of illegal or unethical behavior. The
Compliance Officer, Compliance Committee, General Counsel and Executive Management will
remain resolute in the commitment to maintain the Center’s established compliance
foundation and work collaboratively to identify and respond to new organizational challenges.

* Inspector General Act of 1978 {Public Law 95-452), as amended, requires that the OIG report semiannually to the head of the Department
and the Congress on the activities of the office during the 6-month periods ending March 31% and September 30%. Semiannual Reports
describe OIG’s wark on identifying significant preblems, abuses, deficiencies, and investigative outcomes relating to the administration of
HHS programs and cperations that were disclosed during the reporting period.

? Qui tam provisions allow private citizens to file suits alleging false claims on behalf of the government. If the United States prevails in the
action, the whistleblower, known as a relator, receives up to 30 percent of the recovery.

5




Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
Mainland Community Service Center
7510 FM 1765, Texas City, TX
Wednesday, December 11, 2019
6:15 pm

THE GULF COAST CENTER 3
o)
O

"Better community healthcare promoting healthy living."
Minutes

1) Call To Order- Jamie Travis, Chair of the Board of Trustees, convened the regular meeting on
Wednesday, December 11, 2019 at 6:23 p.m. at the Mainland Community Service Center
located at 7510 FM 1765, Texas City, Texas.

The following Board Members were present: Jamie Travis; Lt. Jaime Castro, Galveston
County Sheriff's Department; Vivian Renfrow; Caroline Rickaway; Mary Lou Flynn-Dupart; Lori
Rickert; Wayne Mallia; and Rick Price.

The following Board Members were absent: Stephen Holmes, Excused

Also present were: Melissa Tucker, CEO — Gulf Coast Center; Chris Cahill - The Cahill Law
Firm; and several Center staff.

2) Citizens’ Comments: Jamie Travis, Chair of the Board of Trustees, introduced the new
board member, Judge Wayne Mallia, who will represent Galveston County.

3) Program Report: Sarah Holt, Chief Nursing Director, introduced the Genoa Pharmacy Team
and provided the Board of Trustees a tour of the new pharmacy. Eslam “Ace” Magrid,
Pharmacy Manager for Genoa, presented a power point overview highlighting the benefits
Genoa services offers.

Linda Bell, JD, BSN, RN, provided training on HB2840: Open Meeting Act rule change
regarding public comments.

4) Board Member Reports:

a. Texas Council of Community Centers: Jamie Travis advised that the next quarterly
board meeting will be held on January 16-18, 2020 in Austin.

b. Texas Council Risk Management Fund: Mary Lou Flynn-Dupart briefly reviewed the
two-page handout distributed to the board members.

5. CEO Report: Melissa Tucker, CEO

a. DSRIP (1115) Transition: Melissa Tucker, CEQO, explained that Texas Health and
Human Services Commission submitted their proposal to Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS), describing how its delivery system reform efforts could continue
without DSRIP funding. Transition planning to become a Certified Community Behavioral
Health Clinic was discussed.

Page 1 of 5 I,



b. Taking Texas Tobacco Free Projects: Melissa Tucker, CEQO, and Linda Bell, General
Counsel, discussed Integral Care's Taking Texas Tobacco Free initiative. Gulf Coast
Center will join 22 other centers in efforts to establish tobacco free facilities. An executive
summary of the project and implementation was provided.

6. Operations Report: NONE
7. Budget, Finance and Admin Reports:

a. Financial & Operational Monthly Report & YTD Summary: Melissa Tucker, CEQ,
reviewed the overall financial variance through October 2019. As well as the days of
operation total fund balance, restricted and unrestricted.

b. Sale of Property Update: Melissa Tucker, CEQO, discussed the remaining property for
sale — Jones Building — informing that the current real estate broker contract will be
coming o an end soon. Staff will prepare a report detailing costs which have
accumulated for this property while it has been for sale. The board will review this report
during the January 2020 board meeting.

8. Consent Agenda:
Consideration and Approval of Recommendations and Acceptance of Consent Agenda ltems.
{Consent agenda items may be pulled from this consideration for individual action or presentation.)
a. Review and approval of September 25, 2019 board meeting minutes.
On motion by Jaime Castro, seconded by Mary Lou Flynn-Dupart, the board voted the approval
of the September 25, 2019 board meeting minutes. The motion carried with all members voting
in favor.
b. Review and approval of September & October 2019 check register.
On motion by Jaime Castro, seconded by Mary Lou Flynn-Dupart, the board voted the approval
of the September and October 2019 check register. The motion carried with all members voting
in favor.

9. Action ltems:
a. Consider the approval of a mental health day to be utilized during FY20 for Center

employees.
Deferred

b. Consider the approval of the Resolution wherein the Gulf Coast Center Board of
Trustees approves submission and receipt of the grant application for the Santa Fe
Community Response Team through the Office of the Governor.

On motion by Jaime Castro, seconded by Vivian Renfrow, the board voted the approval of the

Resolution wherein the Gulf Coast Center Board of Trustees approves submission and receipt
of the grant application for the Santa Fe Community Response Team through the Office of the
Governor. The motion carried with all members voting in favor.

c. Consider approval of the Purchase Order for eight, Medium Duty transit vehicles with
gasoline engines based on the Solicitation #2016-Transit-002. The total amount for this
order is $944,216.

On motion by Jaime Castro, seconded by Caroline Rickaway, the board voted the approval of

the Purchase Order for eight, Medium Duty transit vehicles with gascline engines based on the

Page 2 of 5 i .



Solicitation #2016-Transit-02. The total amount for this order is $944,216. The motion carried
with all members voting in favor.

. Consider the approval of the Resolution by the Board of Trustees of the Gulf Coast
Center approving the Goodman Corporation work order #21 for extension of time of
completion for the City of Angleton pedestrian improvement projects through fiscal year
2021.

On motion by Mary Lou Fiynn-Dupart, secended by Jaime Castro, the board voted the approval

of the Resolution by the Board of Trustees of the Gulf Coast Center approving the Goodman
Corporation work order #21 for extension of time of completion for the City of Angleton
pedestrian improvement projects through fiscal year 2021. The motion carried with all members
voting in favor.

. Consider the approval of the Resolution by the Board of Trustees of the Gulf Coast
Center approving the Goodman Corporation work order #22 for extension of time of
completion for the City of Clute pedestrian improvement projects through fiscal year
2020.

On motion by Mary Lou Fiynn-Dupart, seconded by Jaime Castro, the board voted the approval

of the Resolution by the Board of Trustees of the Guif Coast Center approving the Goodman
Corporation work order #22 for extension of time of completion for the City of Clute pedestrian
improvement projects through fiscal year 2020. The motion carried with all members voting in
favor.

Consider approval to authorize the Chief Executive Officer to enter into an Interlocal
Agreement with City of Angleton for pedestrian, transit connectivity improvements on
Cedar Street with a total cost not to exceed $400,000.00.

On motion by Mary Lou Flynn-Dupart, seconded by Lori Rickert, the board voted the approval to

authorize the Chief Executive Officer to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with City of Angleton
for pedestrian, transit connectivity improvements on Cedar Street with a total cost not to exceed
$400,000.00. The motion carried with all members voting in favor.

. Consider approval to authorize the Chief Executive Officer to enter into an Interlocal

Agreement with the City of Clute for improvements on South Main and South Shanks
which will enhance transit connectivity, cost not to exceed $510,000.00.

On motion by Mary Lou Flynn-Dupart, seconded by Lori Rickert, the board voted the approval to
authorize the Chief Executive Officer to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Clute
for improvements on South Main and South Shanks which will enhance fransit connectivity, cost
not to exceed $510,000.00. The motion carried with all members voting in favor.

. Consider approval of the Connect Transit Equal Employment Opportunity Program
developed in December of 2019.
On motion by Vivian Renfrow, seconded by Mary Lou Flynn-Dupart, the board voted the

approval of the Connect Transit Equal Employment Opportunity Program developed in
December of 2019. The motion carried with all members voting in favor.

Consider approval of Board Resolution No 2019-2 for transfer of $300,000
{committed amount) of cash reserves for capital improvements and
replacements. Updates on the stafus of cash transfers for capital replacements
will be made at the Board of Trustees’ monthly meetings as a part of the Center’s
financial report. The effective date of the Committed Cash Balance amounts will
be effective August 30, 2019.

On motion by Mary Lou Flynn-Dupart, seconded by Vivian Renfrow, the board voted the
approval of Board Resolution No 2019-2 for transfer of $300,000 (committed amount) of

Page 3 of 5 !3




cash reserves for capital improvements and replacements. Updates on the status of
cash transfers for capital replacements will be made at the Board of Trustees' monthly
meetings as a part of the Center’s financial report. The effective date of the Committed
Cash Balance amounts will be effective August 30, 2019. The motion carried with all

members voting in favor.

j. Consider approval of the Memorandum of Understanding with The University of

Houston and Integral Care for the Center to participate in the Taking Texas

Tobacco Free project, a multi-component tobacco-free workplace program for

Substance Use Treatment Centers in Texas.

On motion by Caroline Rickaway, seconded by Lori Rickert, the board voted the
approval of the Memorandum of Understanding with the University of Houston and
Integral Care for the Center {o participate in the Taking Texas Tobacco Free project, a
multi-component tobacco-free workplace program for Substance Use Treatment
Centers in Texas. The motion carried with all members voting in favor. Mary Lou Flynn-

Dupart abstained from the vote.

k. Consider ratification of the below listed Residential Services Network Agreement

and 1DD Provider Services Network Agreement:

IDD Provider Network Services Not to Exceed
Amount
Lifetime Homecare HCS, LLC Short term Crisis Respite services $120,000
The Harmony Place Community Care, LLC | Community Supports, Day hab, Behavioral FY20 IDD
Supports, crisis respite, respite, supported Network Fee
home living, Nursing Facility Specialized Schedule

Services, skills training

Recovery Residential Provider Network | Services Not to Exceed
Amount

Alcohol Drug Abuse Women'’s Center, Inc. | TRA Intensive, TRA Supportive, TRF $247,389.96
Intensive, TRF Supportive

BARC Medically Indigent Care TRA Detox, TRA Intensive, TRA Supportive | $141,698.69

ADAPT Foundation Inc. dba Brazos Place | TRA Detox, TRA Intensive, TRA Supportive, | $382,701.40
TRF Detox, TRF Intensive, TRF Supportive

On the Pathway to Recovery TRA Intensive, TRA Supportive $618,854.91

TRA Detox = $191, TRA Intensive = $92, TRA Supportive = $35, TRF Detox = $191, TRF Intensive = $92, TRF

Supportive = $68

On motion by Caroline Rickaway, seconded by Mary Lou Flynn-Dupart, the board voted the
approval of the above identified listed Residential Services Network Agreement and 1DD
Provider Services Network Agreement. The motion carried with all members voting in favor.

10. Pending or Revised Action ltems:

Pending or revised iftems are those items which were on a prior board agenda but not completely
resolved or there has been a revision since approval. The items may be listed for update purposes or

final action by the Board.

a. Consider re-approval of the renewal agreement with the County of Galveston to fund a

support_staff/Mental Health depute position for the Mental Health Deputies Program.

There was an error in the not fo exceed amount. The correct not to exceed for this

agreement is $80,304.59.

Page 4 of 5




On motion by Caroline Rickaway, seconded by Vivian Renfrow, the board voted the re-approval of the
renewal agreement with the County of Galveston to fund a support stafffMental Health deputy position
for the Mental Health Deputies Program. There was an error in the not to exceed amount. The correct
not to exceed for this agreement is $80,304.59. The motion carried with all members voting in favor.
Jaime Castro abstained from the vote.

1. Calendar....... ... Jamie Travis, Board Chair
Date Event Time Location

January 29, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Angleton

February 26, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Texas City

March 25, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Angleton

April 22, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Texas City

May 27, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Angleton

June 24-26, 2020 Annual Conference Grand Hyalif - San Antonio

July 22, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Texas City

August 26, 2020 Board Meeting 6:15 PM Angleton

12. Executive Session: NONE

As authorized by Chapter §551.072 of the Texas Government Code for deliberations
related to real property.

13. Action Redgarding Executive Session: NONE

14. Adjourn:
There being no further business to bring before the Board of Trustees the meeting was

adjourned at 7:32 p.m.

Respectfully, Approved as to Content and Form,
Cathy Claunch-Scott Jamie Travis
Secretary to the Board of Trustees Board Chair

Page 5of 5



l

[o 5 i ! 0 § § (XT-A4) INELVHIAO TV.LOLINS
§86'056"9€ b § 0C9'UYsT COE'PROTE S B STONIANE TY.LOL
DLT'SPT'OT 966616 %ct  FLTCHCSH
[0E° 650 - 10€°650' SISLLY PU® {PIIY,) 3§ URPY) N - Y2015 [Riapa]
B i o d 9C1¢HI'T (ICH - UB[J AIUAUBLLIY /SBUIASY 1812UI1)
LTFSTIL LTYSTICL SA3ALAG $ISHI) - SRUIADY JRIOUDT
- - (PINL) 2 HOPV) DN + 21tUDADY| FRIDUOD
Dirardliny - 9P T80 [E1S0F] [RUOEERY] « MIUIARY [BISLAEY
ST6°081 STH'081 - (Hdd PIIUD W UNPY) {1 - a0uaA3Y [BI2UD0),
S1T°T09°L HO0'69L Fr1CLs' (S1I3A 3 PUYD 3 HNPV) 1IN - anUBARY [BIAUAD)
DSHIT PREIE0, ) FHuriiaasg
SOR'ELE"LI PT9'el6’| FLTE06'S |
8o1°LOLYL - 861°L01°1 SV INSPUR] [RISPIARIRLS IO
000'89"F 8¥9'6T0 TEESOPYE {dEdSa) BARA €18 ] PIEIPARY
IV - CIFPRE AgsRRp - uenelodsue: | |
S67°659'T (69" 111} L8 PIEPIN - NIX 91|
9ZO'LIO'Y CL9°RTIL 1 98EC SIUREY 7 SAD1AI9% 0] 93.] - AIDADISY|
S96°T8C°1 - £96'z8T'L ORIS - VI0A - AN
QLU0 TUBLYDALIET]
0T8T oeveTET
AT TSI | cIe9eny AUIODN] FBI07] SNOILT|[AISIA]
£69°61S £69°018 JUSUBSIGUID/HIULINSUE SI3.f WY
SI8°05T') C18'08z° | spun, Aoy
ONLLVHIJO - SEANIATY
SH6°056°9E $ ; § 0TY'998'C S9C R0 PE S @ USNUTJIXT TVILOL
FO0'TIRG [\ S +rE 06T SIAPIAOL [ [BUOLSSIF0I J/Auensuo;)
LTS - TOLITS $1507) noddng 1>
OE0°LOLT 000°56€ (XA I sasundxz) Junessdgy sy
6IF65P I 000'061 6TF'69T' | HAMTUNEI TN AUDY - SHI19B
10¥82p - 10¢°8cy sangeauswdnbzyamituang - Aspng [ende)
005°81¢ 00s°81¢€ A01RI0GRT]/S[EIHINAIRUEILL ]
T6LITY ToL'Tir salddng ajqewnsuo )
I76'6LY - o 146641 Paniy)
16'786°S 000°00L %a TI6'T8T'S s)jousg s3ully
ETIBI1'51 00009 %Pr  £T1'850°S1 soJepy, pue Aineg
ONLLVHALO - SASNIIXT
UL PASIARY .E,nﬁ:m..... B G10Z/11/60 Moy panmasaly pendng
oo doBpng pasadgl L yfpng jepug
B u.uuuu..m..m..m.:.:_...{ CTERDDD T wo0n e e 1) R . -)eBpng renuuy NP 123pny [puopriId preog 07AL
0Z0T B3 quasyy 0Z0TAA 07T0TAM 0T0TAH 0Z0T Juag easty J3HID ISTOT JInD Ay,




BT e Bt R~ VT SIEEL - |- ZESOEPS0TE..

0 3 5 - $ (0 0 g
(® s - - (0 [ - $
(006 0EF 1) { - - (000'0cH 1) -

000°0EK 1 - - 00008t -

(T0s'1£5%) - - (zos'1£5°6) -

TS 1E5°6 - - TOS'1E5'6 -

NN pasiany GL0TIS

______“”%_M_Ewm_@__m_bm i .. ______H_"_uu_,__n__é__.:_
”__.“_:M,M,_E_.:__ﬁ §#000 | #000 | 100D, 15Bpng penuuy
0TOT vy :“u.mE c.mcﬁf_ aﬂcﬂfw c.ucn?m . cn@.n JEIX ."_.am_.m -

JADGRA TYLOL

XF-A3T NON NV DNIIVHAd0 TVLOL

(dxg-A22) ONILVIIJO-NON TY.LOLINS
SANUIADY
sasuadyxy
asupaoup Lippog fivig

SANUDATY - $3721AA 1031U0 )
sasuadyzy - sapapaA 198Uy

THAMISH{HY A0/PUD ISDMNY B1H) ] -310)
sanuoady - skoafor pende )y
sasuadxi - sivaforg (edey

HSHBLL 1921101

610Z/11/60 :pavog paywasazy AnewiSug

IAnpaiag 1dpng jruogeiad( ey 574
I 1STOD) Jju) Aty




